
Municipal Services Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMMonday, April 7, 2025

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

25-0345 Minutes from March 24, 2025

 

03-24-25 MSC Minutes.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

25-0346 Approve consulting services contract award for design and construction 

engineering of traffic signals at Richmond Street and Ridgeview Drive to 

raSmith, in an amount not to exceed $68,855.

Design & Construction Services Award Memo_Traffic Signals Richmond Ridgeview.pdfAttachments:

25-0347 Approve contract with Star Protection and Patrol for Parking Ramp 

Security Services in an Amount Not to Exceed $62,400.

2025 Parking Ramp Security Contract Award Memo.pdfAttachments:

25-0295 Approve Loading Zone request from Trout Museum of Art 

325 E College - Trout Museum Loading Zone Request.pdf

325E College - Trout Museum Loading Zone Request with Emails thru 04-02-2025.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

3/24/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Held until April 7, 2025 Committee Meeting.

7. Information Items

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 4/4/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25694
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d00c167-e974-4b58-95de-17ae32392645.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25695
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3e948805-0fd9-4864-94ca-95e4cd5bf4a9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25696
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b3319b4d-8a50-437d-8e25-109ce5e56275.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25644
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=75c04fcf-ec55-4764-a7cb-0e989bb190f4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6ce147ac-7d36-4ddf-adce-8181dcf57e60.pdf


April 7, 2025Municipal Services Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 4/4/2025



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Municipal Services Committee

4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, March 24, 2025

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and FirkusPresent: 4 - 

DoranExcused: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

25-0290 Minutes from March 10, 2025
 

03-10-25 MSC Minutes.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

25-0291 Approve Long-Term Temporary Occupancy Permit for Holton 

Brothers, Inc. in College Avenue right-of-way at 222 W. College 

Avenue through June 19, 2025.

LTT Ocupancy_222 W College_Holton Bros_25-032-T.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25639
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6b9b50c2-a19c-4a82-8958-05fe5d5b3688.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25640
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c1ab3026-21fd-47dd-be1c-14607c394abe.pdf


March 24, 2025Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0292 Approve Long-Term Temporary Occupancy Permit for Hoffman 

Planning, Design, and Construction in College Avenue and Superior 

Street rights-of-way at 222 W. College Avenue through October 31, 

2025. 

LTT Ocupancy_222 W College_Hoffman.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

25-0293 Approve Long-Term Temporary Occupancy Permit for Blue Sky 

Contractors. in Washington Avenue right-of-way at 115 E. Washington 

Avenue through May 30, 2025.

LTT Ocupancy_115 E Washington_Blue Sky_25-027-T.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

25-0294 Approve Parking changes on Durkee Street by Einstein Middle School 

(follow-up to a 6-month evaluation).

Einstein MS Parking Changes on Durkee Street - Post Eval.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

25-0295 Approve Loading Zone request from Trout Museum of Art 

325 E College - Trout Museum Loading Zone Request.pdfAttachments:

Held until April 7, 2025 Committee Meeting.

Meltzer moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Report Action Item be held. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25641
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=99e4b42b-3841-4a0d-a52f-6481eac64766.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25642
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b27a6109-27e6-498d-8d16-a040da86bc43.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25643
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4e4f7491-6f32-40fb-a42e-92984addc49e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25644
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=75c04fcf-ec55-4764-a7cb-0e989bb190f4.pdf


March 24, 2025Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0296 Approve easement release of rights for relocation of the water main 

and sanitary sewer along the north side of I-41 near 3001 E Enterprise 

Avenue.

I-41 Water San Easement Release of Rights.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

25-0297 Approve 2025 DPW Parking Utility Strategic Planning and Marketing Study to 

Walker Consultants in an amount not to exceed $200,000, contingent upon 

2024 DPW budget carryover approval. 

 

2025 DPW Parking Strategic Plan Market Wayfind Study Award 

Memo.pdf

Attachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer and Firkus3 - 

Nay: Siebers1 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Information Items7.

Adjournment8.

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the meeting be adjourned. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Meltzer, Siebers and Firkus4 - 

Excused: Doran1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25645
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3410cc5e-7174-43a8-8e79-cbe88f65b9e1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25646
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9c093c63-dab9-42bd-acd5-875c52faf959.pdf


Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 04/07/2025 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Mark Lahay, P.E., Assistant City Engineer 
 Pete Neuberger, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works / City Engineer 

Subject: Approve consulting services contract award for design and construction engineering of 
traffic signals at Richmond Street and Ridgeview Drive to raSmith, in an amount not to 
exceed $68,855. 

 

The Department of Public Works (DPW) is requesting approval of a consulting services contract 
award for design and construction engineering of traffic signals at Richmond Street and 
Ridgeview Drive to raSmith, in an amount not to exceed $68,855.  
 
The work is scheduled for construction in 2026. Upon completion of this project, the DOT will 
reimburse the City for 90% of these costs. The award amount includes $63,855 base bid plus a 
$5,000 contingency. 

 
DPW requested proposals from five qualified consulting firms located in Wisconsin. The 
proposal from raSmith was the only proposal DPW received. DPW reviewed raSmith’s proposal 
and determined that it meets or exceeds the project requirements based on firm experience, 
team staffing, and project approach. 



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 4/07/2025 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Pete Neuberger, P.E., City Engineer / Deputy Director of Public Works 

Subject: Approve contract with Star Protection and Patrol for Parking Ramp Security Services in 
an Amount Not to Exceed $62,400. 

 

 
The Department of Public Works is requesting approval to contract with Star Protection and 
Patrol (“Star”) for Parking Ramp Security Services in an Amount Not to Exceed $62,400. 

In February 2025, DPW issued a Request for Proposals to three security service firms with the 
following scope of work: 

 Provide a uniformed security officer to patrol all publicly accessible areas within each  
City ramp to deter and report illegal activity. 

 Patrol shift 11 p.m. to 7 a.m. (8 hours total), five nights per week, Wednesday through 
Sunday.  

 Maintain a daily electronic report accessible to City staff with descriptions of any security 
related events and incidents. 

 
DPW requested that proposals include rates for the initial 12 months of service (April 23, 2025 
through April 22, 2026) as well as rates for annual contract extensions through April 23, 2030. 
 

DPW received one proposal, from Star. Star’s proposed hourly rates are as follows: 

Parking Ramp Security Services Period Cost Per Hour 

4/23/2025 – 4/22/2026 $30.00  

1st year extension (4/23/2026 – 4/22/2027) $31.50  

2nd year extension (4/23/2027 – 4/22/2028) $32.50  

3rd year extension (4/23/2028 – 4/22/2029) $33.50  

4th year extension (4/23/2029 – 4/22/2030) $34.50  

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

DPW staff reviewed Star’s cost proposal and proposal narrative, and determined they meet or 
exceed the service requirements for a reasonable price. Additionally, Star has provided 
contracted ramp security services at DPW ramps since 2023 and has provided very good 
service overall during that time. 
 
With satisfactory performance by Star during the initial 12-month contract, DPW staff anticipate 
contracting with Star for an additional 12-month extension beginning April 2026, if approved by 
Committee and Council at the appropriate times. 



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 3/10/25 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Loading Zone request from Trout Museum of Art (300E College Av) 
 

 

The new Lawrence University (LU) / Trout Museum of Art (TMA) building, located on the 300 
block of E. College Avenue, is scheduled to be completed in August of this year. At 100,000 
total square feet, it will house the TMA, LU academic space, and 46 market rate apartments. 
The future occupants have requested the creation of a loading zone on the south side of 
College Avenue, roughly centered on their new building (see sketch below). 

 

Given the size and use of the building, we believe the creation of a loading zone would serve 
the greater good by safely and efficiently facilitating TMA’s customers and buses, as well as a 
wide variety of food and package deliveries throughout the day and night. Additionally, we find 
the request complies with the requirements in the City’s Downtown Loading Zone Policy 
(attached for reference). 

To accomplish this, the following ordinance changes are necessary. 

1. Create: “Metered parking be established on the south side of College Avenue from 
Durkee Street to a point 185 feet east of Durkee Street.” 

2. Create: “No Parking/15-Minute Loading Zone be established on the south side of 
College Avenue from a point 185 feet east of Durkee Street to a point 180 feet west of 
Drew Street.” 



Page 2 of 2 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 3/10/25 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Loading Zone request from Trout Museum of Art (300E College Av) 
 

 

The new Lawrence University (LU) / Trout Museum of Art (TMA) building, located on the 300 
block of E. College Avenue, is scheduled to be completed in August of this year. At 100,000 
total square feet, it will house the TMA, LU academic space, and 46 market rate apartments. 
The future occupants have requested the creation of a loading zone on the south side of 
College Avenue, roughly centered on their new building (see sketch below). 

 

Given the size and use of the building, we believe the creation of a loading zone would serve 
the greater good by safely and efficiently facilitating TMA’s customers and buses, as well as a 
wide variety of food and package deliveries throughout the day and night. Additionally, we find 
the request complies with the requirements in the City’s Downtown Loading Zone Policy 
(attached for reference). 

To accomplish this, the following ordinance changes are necessary. 

1. Create: “Metered parking be established on the south side of College Avenue from 
Durkee Street to a point 185 feet east of Durkee Street.” 

2. Create: “No Parking/15-Minute Loading Zone be established on the south side of 
College Avenue from a point 185 feet east of Durkee Street to a point 180 feet west of 
Drew Street.” 



Page 2 of 2 

 



1

Eric Lom

From: Mary Klasen <marjkk@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 1, 2025 6:49 PM
To: Eric Lom
Subject: Proposed loading zone near new Trout Museum project

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

To:  Appleton Traffic Engineer Eric Los  
From:  Mary Klasen 
Re:  Proposed loading zone near new Trout Museum of Art 
April 1, 2025 
 
I am writing to you to voice my concerns about this proposed loading zone.  I do not currently live in the 
City of Appleton. (Although I did for over 25 years) I am a resident of Grand Chute.  I do spend many of 
my dollars in Appleton.  My contact information is included at the end of this email. 
 
I was dismayed to learn that the City of Appleton is considering taking more parking spaces away from 
the downtown businesses which are near the new Trout Museum.  When the Trout Museum/Lawrence 
facility was planned, businesses were told about the public parking that was to be lost to this project, and 
they adapted.  Then they lost even more to the construction itself, and they adapted.  But now the city 
wants to add a Loading Zone for temporary parking for Door Dash deliveries, senior/children bus loads, 
and other deliveries for the Trout Museum and apartments.  What? How fair is that?  This loading zone 
was not in the original plan, and it seems like a slap in the face for business such as Il Bar, Mud and Prints, 
yoga3 studio, and Casting On, etc. 
 
Adding this at the end of the game just isn’t fair.  The Trout/Lawrence/apartment needs for a loading 
zone should have been considered when this project was developed — before the work was 
started!  Buses?  Perhaps they could drop on the next block.  Deliveries?  The yarn shop deliveries are 
often made from K Alley. Door Dash?  That’s got to be a joke.  A Door Dash driver can certainly park 
somewhere else when making a delivery.    
 
These businesses need the few parking spaces that are left. There has to be another way to solve this 
problem.  Please keep those on-street spaces available for people who frequent these downtown 
businesses. I have often stopped for coffee at Il Bar, and have bought gifts at Mud and Prints.  And I often 
go to the Trout.  But mostly, I go to Casting On … and so do many of my friends and tons of fellow 
knitters.  Sara and Sam’s store is not only a fabulous local yarn shop with great yarns, supplies, and 
advice; it is also a place for meeting, a place for classes, and a destination for out-of-town knitters.   
 
Please, please, please consider the needs of both the businesses and the customers.  There simply has to 
be another way to solve this parking problem. 
 
Mary Kleefisch Klasen 
4510 W Red Tamarack Court 
Grand Chute, WI 54913 
 



2

920-585-0566 
marjkk@yahoo.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution 
when opening attachments or clicking links.  



1

Eric Lom

From: Nancy Middleton <nrmiddleton72@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 27, 2025 2:15 PM
To: Kristin Alfheim; Eric Lom
Subject: Appleton Down Town Parking

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 
 Although I live in Sherwood and not a voting constituent of Appleton, I frequent the Appleton downtown 
businesses often, in particular Casting On and Il Bar Coffee, which are immediate neighbors of the new 
Trout museum. I’m also a long-standing member of the Trout Museum. The money I spend in the Down 
Town district supports small businesses as well as the entire business district. My mobility has become 
reduced as I age, and I cannot walk several blocks from a parking space. If the already limited parking by 
the new Trout Museum is reduced further, I will be forced to take my business to another community and 
let my Trout membership lapse. 

Nancy Middleton 

W4782 Cliff View Drive 

Sherwood, Wisconsin 54169 

906-370-0560 

 
Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution 
when opening attachments or clicking links.  



1

Eric Lom

From: Tracy Peterson <tthompsonpeterson@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 25, 2025 10:17 AM
To: Kristin Alfheim; Eric Lom
Cc: Tracy Peterson; castingon@gmail.co
Subject: loading zone for Trout/LLU

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

The revitalization of College Avenue has been a goal for the city as long as I have lived here (33 years). I do not 
understand how losing parking spaces helps this.  

I stand opposed to the plan for temporary parking for Doordash deliveries, senior/children bus loads, and 
other deliveries for the Trout Museum and apartments. 

This Loading Zone was not in the original plan. How was this overlooked until now? Business downtown by 
and large must rely on street parking accessibility, and the City of Appleton will lose the parking meter 
income. 
 
The responsibility for parking belongs to the Trout and Lawrence University. Parking for the LU resident will 
be in the back. This is where the Trout employees will park. This is where the safe loading zone belongs. 
 
The businesses and customers should not be penalized.  This is up to you, City of Appleton and our elected 
officials.   
 
Sincerely, 
Tracy Peterson 
Appleton Resident 
Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution 
when opening attachments or clicking links.  



1

Eric Lom

From: lainieky@gmail.com
Sent: Monday, March 24, 2025 9:52 PM
To: Eric Lom
Subject: Casting On yarn shop/parking

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organizaƟon. Exercise cauƟon when opening aƩachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 
 
Mr. Lom, 
 
As a frequent customer of CasƟng On Yarn Shop in downtown Appleton, I am wriƟng concerning the cutback in the 
number of parking spots convenient to the store.  Sara runs a very successful business with a lot of traffic.  I have been in 
her store when there are many people ahead of me waiƟng for her expert advice and guidance.  I have also aƩended 
classes when there have been as many as 20 other people in her store. 
 
Since there are very few stores like CasƟng On in the area, many people drive from out of town for a high end experience 
of a great yarn shop.  Convenient parking is paramount to Sara’s conƟnued success and as a long Ɵme customer, I wanted 
to voice my opinion. 
 
Thank you, 
Lainie Renfro 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
AƩenƟon: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use cauƟon when opening 
aƩachments or clicking links. 



1

Eric Lom

From: Jan Riehl <jriehl54@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 25, 2025 12:51 PM
To: Vaya Jones; Kristin Alfheim; Eric Lom
Subject: Street parking on 300 block of East College

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

I am very disappointed to learn that loading zone spaces will take even more spaces away from Casting 
On and the other businesses there. As a customer of Casting On and the coffee shop, parking has been a 
nightmare for the owners of these businesses during construction. Now, seemingly at the last minute, 
when construction is almost done, the city proposes loading zones to take away more parking.  
 
This should have, at the least, been taken into consideration sooner. If customers can't get to these 
places, the businesses may not make it.  
 
Casting On is a fantastic place for more than just buying yarn, but also for classes and comradery. The 
owners have invested in making this an inviting space. Seems like the city is doing everything to make 
going there a pain in the ass, and possibly impossible for customers with limited mobility.  
 
Poor planning on the city's part should not be taken out on these wonderful places! 
 
Vaya, this isn't your district, but I live in district 10 and wanted you to know my feelings on this. 
 
Jan Riehl  
920-735-0759  
Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution 
when opening attachments or clicking links.  


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_03-24-25 MSC Minutes
	0002_1_Design Construction Services Award Memo_Traffic Signals Richmond Ridgeview
	0003_1_2025 Parking Ramp Security Contract Award Memo
	0004_1_325 E College - Trout Museum Loading Zone Request
	0004_2_325E College - Trout Museum Loading Zone Request with Emails thru 04-02-2025
	325E College - Trout Museum Loading Zone Request
	Klasen, Mary
	Middleton, Nancy
	Peterson, Tracy
	Renfro, Lainie
	Riehl, Jan


